
 

 
 

MEETING (SACRE) STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR 
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
 

DATE Monday, 14th June, 2010  
4.00 pm 
 

VENUE CONFERENCE ROOM 3 - CIVIC CENTRE 
 

ENQUIRIES KATE SIMONDS 023 8083 2413 
Email: kate.simonds@southampton.gov.uk 
 

MEMBERS SEE ATTACHED LIST 
 

A G E N D A 

 

 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR  

 
4:00pm 

2. WELCOME, APOLOGIES AND CHANGES OF MEMBERSHIP  
 

4:05pm 

3. STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  
 

4:10pm 

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 

5. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING  4:15pm 
 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 

8 March 2010, attached.  

  

 

6. ADOPTION OF THE CONSTITUTION  4:20pm 
 To formally approve the amended SACRE Constitution, attached.  

 
 

7. MEMBERSHIP OF SACRE  4:35pm 
 To receive a presentation from the Chair outlining the current membership 

of the SACRE, list attached. 

  

 

8. FEEDBACK FROM EVENTS FROM INDIVIDUAL FAITH GROUPS  4:40pm 
 To receive verbal updates from various members of the SACRE regarding 

feedback from events from individual faith groups. 
 
NOTE: It is requested that members contact the Clerk to the SACRE in 
advance of the meeting if any additional documentation is required that will 
support their feedback that they wish to raise under this item.  
 

 

9. DEVELOPMENT PLAN  4:55pm 
 To receive a report from Cllr Daunt giving detailed analysis on each of the 

Development Plan Dimensions’ from the working group set up to progress 
the Plan.  
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

10. DATES AND VENUES FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 2010-2011  5:10pm 
 To discuss and agree dates and venues for future SACRE meetings for the 

new municipal year. 
 
Proposed Meeting Dates: 
 

• Monday 18 October 2010 

• Monday 7 March 2011 

• Monday 13 June 2011 
   

 

11. VISIT TO SCHOOL BY GAIL RATCLIFFE  5:20pm 
 To receive a verbal update on a visit to a school by Gail Ratcliffe.  

 
 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  5:30pm 
 To address any other business which may arise at the meeting.  

 
 

Monday, 7 June 2010 SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

GROUP A 
 
Christian Denominations* 
(* Religions and other bodies listed in the SACRE Constitution) 

 

The Roman Catholic Church    Rev David Sillince 

The Baptists       Rev David Turner 

The Religious Society of Friends (Quakers)  Bridget Goom  

The Greek Orthodox Church    Gregory Hadjikyriacou 

The Fellowship of Independent Evangelical  Mrs Margaret Blake 
Churches 

The Methodist Church     Gail Ratcliffe 

The United Reformed Church    Vacancy 

The Assemblies of God                                       Peter Howard 

The Salvation Army      Major Ruth Hill    
 
Other Religions  
Religions other than Christianity (as listed in the SACRE Constitution) – Baha’i, Buddhism, Judaism, 
Hinduism, Islam, Sikhism = 6 

 
Baha’i        Jeff Lynn 

Buddhist       David Vane 

Hindu        Priti Dave 

Jewish       Ms Mag Kushner 

Muslim       Anas Al-Korj 

Sikh        Bharpoor Singh 

 

GROUP B 
 (Four representatives of the Church of England) 
 
The Church of England 

Tony Blackshaw  

Rev Canon Geoff Annas 

Anne Steele-Arnett 

Lilian Weatherley        

 
 
 



 

GROUP C  
 (Six teachers representing associations recognised by the Authority for the purposes of consultation 

and negotiation) 
 

National Union of Teachers (NUT) Jackie Meering  

The National Association of Schoolmasters/  
Union of Women Teachers (NASUWT) Mr D Parrott  

Voice Mr R Palmer  

The Association of Teachers and Lecturers Julian Bryant 
 (ATL) 
Association of School and College Leaders      Ruth Evans 
                                                        (ASCL) 
National Association of Headteachers              Ellen Humphries 
                                                        (NAHT) 

 
GROUP D  
 (4+substitute) - Four representatives of the Southampton City Council, at least two of whom shall 

be elected members of the City Council) 
 
Southampton City Council 

Councillor Carol Cunio 

Councillor Parvin Damani (CHAIR) 

Councillor Edward Daunt (VICE-CHAIR) 

Councillor Brian Parnell 

GROUP D SUBSTITUTE   Mrs. K. Martin 

 
 

OTHERS (Non-voting) 
 
CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
South Hampshire Humanists Ms. Chris Robinson 

Primary School RE Teacher Anna Adams 

Representative of Teachers’ Subject  Sian Roberts 
Network/Aspirant Advanced Skills  
Teacher (RE)   

OBSERVERS 

Central Baptist Church Rev. David Masters 

 

 



 1

 

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE) 

NOTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 8 MARCH 2010  

AT THE CIVIC CENTRE, SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 

 PRESENT: 

 Group A Members  

 Anas al-Korj Muslim 

 Mrs Margaret Blake The Fellowship of Independent Evangelical 
Churches – Items 1-7  

 Bridget Goom The Religious Society of Friends (Quakers) 

 Peter Howard The Assemblies of God 

 Jeff Lynn Baha’i  

 Gail Ratcliffe Methodist Church 

 David Vane Buddhist, Items 1-7 

 Group B Members  

 Rev Canon Geoff Annas The Church of England  

 Anne Steele-Arnett The Church of England – Items 1-7 

 Lilian Weatherley The Church of England  

 Group C Members  

 Ellen Humphries National Association of Headteachers (NAHT)  

 Jackie Meering National Union of Teachers (NUT) – Items 4-9 

 Group D Members  

 Councillor Carol Cunio Southampton City Council, Items 1-7  

 Councillor Edward Daunt (Vice-
Chair) 

Southampton City Council 

 Councillor Brian Parnell Southampton City Council, Items 1-7 

 CO-OPTED MEMBERS  

 Sian Roberts Representative of Teachers’ Subject 
Network/Aspirant Advanced Skills Teacher 
(RE) 

 Chris Robinson South Hampshire Humanists 

 OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:  

 Sue Langdon – Secondary 
Phase Inspector  

Southampton City Council 

  

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5



 2

 IN ACCORDANCE WITH 7.1 OF THE SOUTHAMPTON STANDING ADVISORY 
COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION CONSTITUTION, THE MEETING WAS 

INQUORATE AS NO MEMBERS FROM GROUP C WERE PRESENT (SIX 
TEACHERS REPRESENTING ASSOCIATIONS RECOGNISED BY THE 

AUTHORITY FOR THE PURPOSES OF CONSULTATION AND 
NEGOTIATION). UNTIL THE MEETING BECAME QUORATE, THE SACRE 

PANEL WERE UNABLE TO TAKE ANY DECISIONS, ONLY MAKE 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE NEXT MEETING. 

  ACTION 

1.  WELCOMES, APOLOGIES AND CHANGES OF MEMBERSHIP  

 COUNCILLOR DAUNT IN THE CHAIR  

 In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair took the Chair and 
welcomed everybody to the meeting. 

 

 At the invitation of the Chair, a moment of reflection was provided at 
the start of the meeting by the Buddhist representative, David Vane. 

 

 The meeting was declared inquorate and therefore no decisions could 
be made. However, it was agreed that non-contentious general 
business could continue until a quorum was formed. 

 

 Apologies were received from:-  

 Group A   

 Ms Mag Kushner Jewish representative  

 Group C   

 Ruth Evans Association of School and College Leaders – 
(ASCL)  

 

 David Parrott The National Association of Schoolmasters/Union 
of Women Teachers (NASUWT) 

 

 Group D   

 Councillor 
Damani 

Southampton City Council   

2. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING INCLUDING MATTERS 
ARISING 

 

  RECOMMENDED that the minutes of the meeting held on 
19 October 2009 be approved and signed as a correct 
record. (Copy of the minutes circulated with the agenda and 
appended to the signed minutes). 

 

3. MEMBERSHIP OF SACRE  

 The SACRE received a verbal update from the Chair on current 
membership and drew attention to paragraph 9.7 of the Constitution. It 
was noted that the sending of apologies and the use of substitutes 
were seen to be necessary.  

 

  RECOMMENDED  

  (i) that a more vigorous approach be adopted towards 
members who continually failed to attend regularly, 
unless reasonable reasons were provided. 

 



 3

  (ii) that the following new members were welcomed:-  

   Group A  

   Mrs Margaret Blake, representing the Fellowship of 
Evangelical Churches in Southampton. 

 

   Ms Gail Ratcliffe, representing The Methodist Church.  

   Group B  

   Rev Canon Geoff Annas, representing The Church of 
England and replacing Jennifer Cox. 

 

   Co-opted Member  

   Anna Adams, Primary School RE Teacher.  

 IN ACCORDANCE WITH 7.1 OF THE SOUTHAMPTON STANDING ADVISORY 
COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION CONSTITUTION, THE MEETING 

BECAME QUORATE.  

4. ADOPTION OF SACRE CONSTITUTION  

 The SACRE considered the report of the Chair of the SACRE 
requesting members to formally approve the amended SACRE 
Constitution for 2009/10.  

 

 It was noted that there was guidance and good practise on Religious 
Education (RE) available on both the NASACRE website (National 
Association of Standing Advisory Councils for Religious Education) 
and/or the QCDA website (Qualifications and Curriculum 
Development Agency). 

 

  RESOLVED that the approval of the constitution be deferred to 
the next meeting following the receipt of advice on the 
following:- 

 

  (i) the wording and sense of paragraph 9.12 concerning the 
status of observers and their rights to address the 
SACRE; 

 

  (ii) the issue of confidential business was discussed and it 
was noted that should members of the Press and public 
be required to leave a SACRE meeting at any point, 
there would be a need for this to be indicated in advance 
on the agenda; 

 

  (iii) paragraph 9.3 was queried with regard to the 
representatives for Academy schools and a discussion 
took place around co-opted members and 
representatives from other school groups.  

 

5. FEEDBACK ON EVENTS  

 The SACRE received and noted a verbal update from the Secondary 
Phase Inspector on the following:- 

 

 Local SACRE’S Network Group meeting on 5 October 2009  

 • Southampton had not been represented at October’s meeting; 

 

 



 4

 • the Secondary Phase Inspector volunteered to take any 
queries to the next Local SACRE’s Network Group meeting. 

 

 The First Interfaith Week in England, held 15 – 21 November 2009  

 • Events and successes in the week were outlined.  

 • A new appointee to SCOF (Southampton Council of Faiths) 
was noted. 

 

 • A discussion took place on linking the First Interfaith week in 
England with the National Faith week. 

 

 Feedback on individual faith groups  

 Youth Peace Walk 

• David Vane reported of the Youth Peace Walk that had taken 
place on 7 March 2010 involving approximately 70 students. 

 

 Funding 

• Rev Canon Geoff Annas, from the Anglican University 
Chaplaincy, reported that the Church of England in England 
was lacking funding to support chaplaincies. 

 

 Non-statutory Guidance for Religious Education (RE) in Schools 

• Chris Robinson reported that the non-statutory guidance for RE 
in Schools had now been agreed. 

• Group A membership guidelines had changed to include 
Humanism on SACREs. 

 

 Muslim Awareness Week 

• Anas al-Korj gave details on the activities and workshops held. 
Although open to all, the SACRE heard that it was mostly 
University students who attended. 

 

 Annual Report – Exam Results  

 • overall, the pass rate had been good. 

• RE full course had a pass rate of 62%-73% A-Cs. 

• RE short course had a pass rate of 50%-55% A-Cs. 

• SACRE activities had been limited over the last year, but it was 
hoped that these would become more active over the next 
year. 

• no subject inspections had taken place yet. 

 

  RECOMMENDED  

  (i) that a summary document of the Agreed Syllabus could 
be made available and that the link for this be sent to all 
SACRE members; 

 

  (ii) that the non-statutory guidance be included on the next 
agenda as a main item; 

 

  (iii) that Anas Al Korj be requested to forward the link 
relating to Muslim Awareness Week to all SACRE 
members; 

AaK 



 5

  (iv) that Councillor Parnell would attend the next local 
SACRE’s Network Group meeting on 22 March 2010; 
and 

BP 

  (v) that Chris Robinson be requested to send out a related 
website link prior the next meeting. 

CR 

6. SACRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

 The SACRE considered a report from Councillor Daunt giving detailed 
analysis on each of the Development Plan Dimensions’ from the 
working group. Councillor Daunt outlined the background, purpose 
and structure of the Plan and set out the following five sections: 

 

 Dimension 1: Standards and Quality of Provision of RE (update from 
Sian Roberts) 

 

 Dimension 2: Management of SACRE and partnership with the LA 
and other key stakeholders (update from Councillor Daunt) 

 

 2a) SACRE meetings  

 2b) Membership and training  

 2c) Improvement/development planning  

 2d) Professional and financial support  

 2e) Information and advice  

 2f) Partnerships with other key stakeholders  

 Dimension 3: The effectiveness of the local Agreed Syllabus (update 
from Jackie Meering) 

 

 Not discussed.  

 Dimension 4: Collective Worship (update from Peter Howard)  

 Not discussed.  

 Dimension 5: Contribution of SACRE to community cohesion (update 
from Jeff Lynn) 

 

 Not discussed.  

  RESOLVED  

  (i) that the Chair would contact NASACRE regarding 
training to ensure that at least one member of each 
group received appropriate training; and 

ED 

  (ii) that future development-group meeting dates needed to 
be agreed prior to the next meeting. 

ED 

7. AOB  

 The following upcoming events were noted:- 

• the next NASACRE AGM. 

• an application for the Young People Interfaith Project/Westhill 
Awards (deadline for application 31 March 2010). 

• the RE Celebration for 2011. 

 

 



 6

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

 Declaration of Interests training – date to be confirmed (Sarita Riley).   

 Social cohesion – Prevent agenda (Vanessa Shahani)  

9. DATES AND VENUES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

  RESOLVED that proposed dates be circulated by the Clerk.  

 



SACRE CONSTITUTION  

  14. June 2010 version for approval 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE) 

CONSTITUTION 

 

1 AIM 

1.1 The aim of the SACRE is to provide advice to the Authority upon such matters 
connected with collective worship in schools, and the religious education to be 
taught in accordance with an agreed syllabus. 
 

2 OBJECTIVES 

2.1 The core objectives of the SACRE are: 
 

 • to provide independent consultation and detailed scrutiny on any 
matters within its scope of interest; 

 
 • to determine any application from the headteacher of a City school, 

following consultation with the governing body, for an amendment to the 
requirement that collective worship be wholly or mainly of a broadly 
Christian character; and 

 
 • to publish an annual report which: 

 
i. specifies any matters on which the SACRE has advised the 

Authority; 
ii. broadly describes the nature of that advice; and 
iii. sets out its reasons for offering advice on any matters which were 

not initially referred to the SACRE by the Authority. 
 
In addition to making the report available for public inspection, a copy shall be 
sent to the Qualifications and National Curriculum Authority (QCA) and to such 
other organisations, including County, Foundation and Voluntary Schools and 
Academies and local teacher training institutions as the SACRE considers 
appropriate. 
 

3 SCOPE OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 The scope of interest of the SACRE shall include: 
 

 • any such matters connected with collective worship in City schools, and the 
religious education to be taught in accordance with an agreed syllabus as 
the Authority may refer to the SACRE, or as the SACRE may consider 
appropriate; and 

 
 • the statutory duty of the Authority to review its agreed syllabus every five 

years and to convene an Agreed Syllabus Conference. 
 

Agenda Item 6



 

  14. June 2010 version for approval 
 
 
 
 
  

2

4 RELATIONSHIP OF THE SACRE WITH THE LOCAL AUTHORITY 
 

4.1 The SACRE will have a separate identity and independent voice within the 
arrangements.  The SACRE should be consulted by the Local Authority on any 
issues falling within its scope of interest.   
 

5 
 

ACCOUNTABILITY AND BUSINESS PLANNING 
 

5.1 The SACRE is independent of the Council.  The Education Reform Act 1988 
requires the City Council as a Local Authority to establish a SACRE.  When 
reports and actions are required that need to be considered by the Council they 
will be formally considered by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member or Officer acting 
under delegated powers. 
 

6 LEGAL FRAMEWORK 
 

6.1 The SACRE is established pursuant to the Education Reform Act 1988. 
 

6.2 To facilitate the effective operation of the SACRE in accordance with its aims, 
the SACRE will respond as necessary to any further government guidance, 
legislation or new initiatives impacting upon the areas of responsibility of 
functions of the SACRE. 
 

7 THE ACTIVITIES OF THE SACRE 
 

7.1 In pursuit of its aims the SACRE will:- 
 

 • operate to a timetable that mirrors the municipal year of the Local 
Education Authority.  
 

 • hold meetings (including extraordinary meetings) at a time of day and at 
an appropriate location to allow full participation by members: 
i. at the Civic Centre and/or other venues; 
ii. at the end of the school day;  
iii. or otherwise notified to SACRE members 5 clear working days 

before each regular meeting. 
 

 • hold its meetings at least once per term, no less than 3 times per year;  
 

 • require at least one member from each voting group to be present to 
constitute a quorum in order to have a fully constituted meeting; 

 
 • always seek to operate on a consensus basis.  If it is not possible to 

reach a consensus, members will be required to undertake a formal vote 
as set out in paragraph 12 of this Constitution. 

 



 

  14. June 2010 version for approval 
 
 
 
 
  

3

 • review and recommend to Cabinet (Cabinet Member) any amendments 
to its Constitution on an annual basis at the first meeting of each 
financial year following a formal consultation process with the relevant 
parties; 

 
 • review and adopt the terms of reference for any sub-committees on an 

annual basis at the first meeting of each financial year following a formal 
consultation process with the sub-committees; 

 
 • keep a written record of all SACRE meetings and meetings of its sub-

committees; 
 

 • any member of the SACRE may submit items to be included on the 
agenda of a main meeting of the SACRE supported by a written 
statement/report to the Chair at least 10 working days before the 
meeting; 

 
 • agenda and reports will be circulated generally at least 5 working days 

prior to the meeting;  
 

 • create sub-committees where necessary; 
 

 • be able to ask that the Local Authority consider holding an extraordinary 
meeting of the SACRE at the written request of at least one member. 

 
8 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

 
8.1 Request for Information under the Freedom of Information Act will be handled 

in accordance with the Council's published procedures for dealing with such 
requests. 
  
Any Member of the SACRE receiving a request under the FOIA will be required 
to pass that request to Legal & Democratic Services within 24 hours of receipt 
of that request in order that Legal & Democratic Services may deal with the 
request on behalf of the SACRE within the 20 working day time limit. 
  
Where a request has been made for the disclosure of information covered by a 
qualified exemption under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (or other 
relevant information), the Chair of the SACRE will be invited to attend 
a Public Interest Test Panel meeting to consider the potential disclosure. If the 
Chair is unable to attend the meeting the request will be dealt with by the Panel 
at their discretion. Where the Panel decides that the balance of interest is in 
favour of the disclosure of the information requested, Legal & Democratic 
Services will arrange for disclosure. Where the Panel decides that the balance  
is in favour of the non-disclosure of the information requested, the information 
requested will be withheld and Legal & Democratic Services will arrange for the 
reasons for the decision to be communicated in writing. Such decisions will be 
made after taking any appropriate legal advice in accordance with the Council's 



 

  14. June 2010 version for approval 
 
 
 
 
  

4

published policies and procedures. 
 
9 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 

9.1 The SACRE shall comprise members drawn from four groups, appointed by 
the Authority, as specified below: 
 

 GROUP A 
 

 One representative of each of the religions and other bodies listed below: 
 

 Christian Denominations 
 

 The Roman Catholic Church The Methodist Church 
 The Baptist Union The United Reformed Church 

 The Religious Society of Friends The Assemblies of God 

 The Greek Orthodox Church The Salvation Army 
 The Fellowship of Independent Evangelical Churches 

 
 Religions other than Christianity 

 
 Judaism Islam 
 Hinduism Sikhism 
 Buddhism 

 
Baha’i 

 GROUP B 
 

 Four representatives of the Church of England 
 

 GROUP C 
 

 Six teachers representing associations recognised by the Authority for the 
purposes of consultation and negotiation 
 

 GROUP D 
 

 Four representatives of the Southampton City Council, at least two of whom 
shall be elected members of the City Council.  
 

9.2 In addition to members drawn from these four groups detailed above, one 
person appointed by Oasis Community Learning in respect of the Academies 
operating in the City of Southampton which previously had Community or 
Voluntary status may sit as a member of the SACRE. 
 



 

  14. June 2010 version for approval 
 
 
 
 
  

5

9.3 The SACRE may co-opt additional persons, including such teachers as may be 
necessary to ensure adequate representation of teachers who are actively 
concerned with religious education in primary and secondary schools. Co-
options shall be for the period set by the SACRE. 
 

9.4 Members of the SACRE, with the exception of co-opted members, shall be 
appointed for a period of four years. 
 

9.5 In accordance with regulations, the Local Authority will review the membership 
of the SACRE on an annual basis in line with the Constitutional review, and 
may terminate the membership of any member of the SACRE by giving one 
month’s written notice. 
 

9.6 In addition to the term of office coming to an end, a member ceases to be a 
member of the SACRE if he or she resigns from the SACRE or no longer 
occupies the office which he or she was nominated to represent. 
 

9.7 A member of the SACRE appointed by the Authority may be removed from 
membership by the Authority at any time if, in the opinion of the Authority, the 
person ceases to be representative of either the denomination, religious group, 
association or Academy which he/she was appointed to represent. 
 

9.8 Subject to condition 9.7, above, members of the SACRE having served a full 
term are eligible for re-appointment. 
 

9.9 The SACRE will receive support and advice from the School Inspectors. 
 

9.10 At the discretion of the Chair of the SACRE, Advising Officers can attend 
SACRE meetings.  Advising Officers provide information and professional 
expertise but are not members of the SACRE and cannot vote. 
 

9.11 
 
 
 
 

The Executive Director for Children and Learning and the Executive Member 
for Children’s Services shall have a standing invitation to attend all SACRE and 
sub committee meetings but are not members of the SACRE and cannot vote. 
At the discretion of the Chair they may address the meeting. 

9.12 At the discretion of the Chair of the SACRE, Observers can attend SACRE 
meetings. Observers are interested individuals who have been invited to attend 
SACRE meetings. At the discretion of the Chair of the SACRE observers can 
address the meeting but they are not members of the SACRE and cannot vote. 
 

10 ELECTION AND NOMINATION OF SACRE MEMBERS 
 

10.1 Members of the SACRE are responsible for the method by which they elect 
and nominate their representatives, and each representative group within the 
SACRE will be responsible for the method by which they elect their 
representatives. 
 



 

  14. June 2010 version for approval 
 
 
 
 
  

6

10.2 The membership of existing schools members is valid until such members’ 
terms of office come to an end or they resign or they become otherwise 
ineligible for membership. When a vacancy does arise, the authority must 
appoint a replacement schools member to the SACRE to represent the same 
group as the retiring member. 
 

10.3 Nomination of members is by a process of self-nomination. The SACRE will 
formally endorse membership by a simple majority vote at the next available 
meeting of the SACRE. 
 

11 MEETINGS 
 

11.1 Meetings of the SACRE shall be held in public. 
 

12 VOTING 
 

12.1 On any matter to be decided by the SACRE, the four groups A, B, C, and D 
shall be entitled to vote and each group shall have a single vote. The 
Academies’ representative and the co-opted members do not have a vote. 
 

12.2 Decisions within a group about how the vote is to be cast do not require 
unanimity. Each group is to regulate its own proceedings, including provision 
for resolving deadlock. 
 

12.3 In the event of a tied vote, the Chair shall have the casting vote. 
 

13 CODE OF PRACTICE 
 

13.1 Members of the SACRE will operate in accordance with the Local Code of 
Conduct for Members. Members are therefore required to sign a declaration in 
respect of the Code of Conduct and also complete a Register of their Interests.  
 

13.2 Interests, whether personal or prejudicial, should be declared. If a member has 
a prejudicial interest they should declare that interest and withdraw from the 
meeting and take no part in the decision. 
 

13.3 Members who fail to attend three consecutive meetings without a satisfactory 
explanation will have their membership reviewed by the SACRE. 
 

14 CHAIRING 
 

14.1 The Chair and Vice Chair will be appointed from the members of Groups A, B, 
C and D. Such appointments shall be for the Municipal Year or until the person 
appointed ceases to be a member of the SACRE, whichever is sooner.  
 

14.2 Persons continuing to be members of the SACRE are eligible for re-
appointment to the position of Chair or Vice Chair. 
 



 

  14. June 2010 version for approval 
 
 
 
 
  

7

15 SERVICING THE COMMITTEE  
 

15.1 The specific responsibilities of the Chair and Members of the SACRE will be as 
set out in this Constitution and the Education Reform Act 1988. 
 

15.2 The specific responsibilities of Democratic Support and Member’s Services of 
the City Council will be to:- 
 

 • convene meetings of the SACRE; 
 

 • arrange accommodation for meetings; 
 

 • co-ordinate and act as secretariat to meetings; 
 

 • copy, circulate and dispatch appropriate papers;  and 
 

 • provide appropriate guidance on the operation of local government and 
other relevant procedures. 

 
15.3 The specific responsibilities of the Professional Advisors to the SACRE will be 

to 

 • provide advice to the SACRE and any sub committee(s) on professional 
issues; and 

 
 • advise and update SACRE members on any new government guidance or 

policy documents. 
 

16 DISPUTES AND COMPLAINTS 
 

16.1 The SACRE is intended to be a collaborative, co-operative body and needs to 
ensure that no particular sector or member is unduly favored.  Problems and 
issues should normally be debated and resolved at the SACRE meetings.   
However, if parties feel that these have not been resolved, the following 
process should be followed and minutes taken. 
 

16.2 Stage 1:  The parties who are in dispute meet with the Chair of the SACRE and 
the Professional Advisor who will assist in finding or recommending a solution.    
 

16.3 Stage 2:  A special meeting of the SACRE is convened, with papers prepared 
by the parties representing different views.  The Chair and the Professional 
Advisor also prepare a paper offering possible options for resolution.  If the 
problem is not resolved, the dispute is referred to Stage 3. 
 

16.4 Stage 3: If the issue is not resolved then guidance or clarification will be sought 
from the relevant Government Department. 
 



 

  14. June 2010 version for approval 
 
 
 
 
  

8

16.5 Complaints from members of the public will be handled by the Council’s 
Complaints Procedure. 
 

17 NON COMPLIANCE OF ACTIVITIES 
 

17.1 Issues of non-compliance will, in the first instance, be referred to the Chair of 
the SACRE who will investigate and attempt to reach satisfactory resolution 
through discussion with the representative of the agency concerned. 
In the event of satisfactory resolution not being reached, the matter will be 
referred to the next SACRE meeting. 
 

18 MONITORING AND INSPECTION  
 

18.1 
 

The effectiveness of the SACRE will be assessed by Internal Review. 
 

 
 
18.2 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
The SACRE and its members will co-operate with any reasonable request by 
the Council in respect of its overview and scrutiny functions under Section 21 
Local Government Act 2000. Any requests for information or attendance of 
SACRE members at the relevant overview and scrutiny committee will be 
made as soon as possible and generally at least 10 days before the meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM NO: 6, APPENDIX 1 
 

 
Constitution Clarification 

 
At the SACRE meeting held on 8 March 2010, Item no 6, “Adoption of SACRE 
Constitution” the Group requested clarification on three particular issues 
before the Constitution could be agreed. Advice has now been received, with 
the following points to note: 
 

(i) That the wording and sense of paragraph 9.12 concerning the status of 
observers and their rights to address the SACRE; 

 Meetings of the SACRE are open to the public unless members resolve that an 
item of business be considered in private session and with such items of business 
the principles of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 will 
apply. 
Members of the public do not have a right to speak at any meeting of the SACRE 
but may address the SACRE at the discretion of the Chair. 

(ii) That the issue of confidential business was discussed and it was noted that 
should members of the Press and public be required to leave a SACRE 
meeting at any point, there would be a need for this to be indicated in 
advance on the agenda; 

  Report authors are responsible for informing the clerk, in advance, of the status of 
reports to be included on the Agenda and if they contain confidential or 
commercially sensitive information and with such items of business, the principles 
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 will apply. Reports that 
are to be treated as confidential should be marked accordingly and contain the 
appropriate confidentiality clause. 
Where an item of business before the SACRE is marked as confidential, that item 
of business will be discussed in private. The professional advisors to the SACRE 
may attend and speak at the SACRE meetings on consideration of all matters 
considered in private. Members of the public and observers (including other 
elected Members or Officers of the Council) shall be excluded from the 
consideration of any confidential item. 

(iii) That paragraph 9.3 was queried with regard to the representatives for 
Academy schools and a discussion took place around co-opted members 
and representatives from other school groups; 

 Foundation schools should NOT be specifically included. They are effectively 
covered elsewhere as they are maintained schools (in common with community 
and Voluntary schools) and are thus represented by other groups already present 
on the Committee. Academies are included (for non voting purposes) simply 
because they are not technically represented by any other group and deliver part 
of the public sector curriculum (albeit with e different status to maintained 
schools) and effectively replace the old concept of GM schools. 

 

 

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO: 9 
 

SACREs and self-evaluation: A guide  
(based upon OFSTED document HMI 2467, May 1995)     
 

Introduction 
Standing Advisory Councils for Religious Education (SACREs) have an 
important role in the development of effective learning in religious 
education and supporting good practice in collective worship. The work 
of SACREs has become increasingly challenging and diverse. In many ways 
SACREs reflect the work of governing bodies in schools, in so far as 
they act as critical friends to the local education authority (LEA) on 
matters of religious education and collective worship. They also mirror 
the work of governing bodies in that members are unpaid volunteers who 
give up their time to support religious education (RE) and collective 
worship locally. 
 
A key question for a SACRE to consider is if SACREs were abolished 
tomorrow, who would miss them? This guide to SACREs and self-evaluation 
is designed to help individual SACREs evaluate their role and, in 
particular, to consider their impact on pupils’ learning. The guidance 
highlights five key dimensions of a SACRE’s work and provides 
exemplification of good practice. Using the self-evaluation guidance 
should enable a SACRE to have a clear picture of its strengths and areas 
which could be further developed. It encourages SACREs to consider their 
key priorities, their organisational patterns and structures, and their 
partnership with the LA and other key stakeholders.   
 
This self-evaluation tool has been developed from three main sources: 

• the recent Ofsted report on the inspection of SACREs (An 
Evaluation of the work of Standing Advisory Councils for Religious 
Education, HMI 2269, published in November 2004) 

• the Qualification and Assessment Authority’s (QCA) annual analysis 
of SACRE reports 

• the National Association of SACRE’s (NASACRE) work in exemplifying 
effective practice in SACREs. 

 

Rationale 
The purpose of the self-evaluation tool is to help SACREs and LAs assess 
the quality and effectiveness of their work and to identify where they 
might develop further. 
 
The tool focuses on a range of aspects of the work of SACREs including: 
1. the monitoring and improvement of the standards, quality of teaching 
and provision in RE 
2. the partnership between the SACRE, the LA and other key stakeholders 
3. the effectiveness of the locally agreed syllabus 
4. the monitoring and improvement of the provision and quality of 
collective worship 
5. the contribution of the SACRE to the promotion of social and racial 
harmony. 
 
Each SACRE should be able to identify where it is in relation to three 
broad stages of development: Developing, Established and Advanced. 
Wherever possible some examples of good practice are included. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9



Stage 1: developing 
SACREs at this stage of development may be fulfilling their statutory 
obligations but do so at a fairly basic level and are not able to take a 
lead in providing advice to the LA or the initiative in promoting 
developments. They are often unclear about their roles and 
responsibilities and are not particularly well informed about the 
strengths, weaknesses or priorities for development in schools. They 
often have a formal relationship with the LA but have little input in or 
awareness of the LA’s priorities.  
 
SACREs at this stage may: 

• find it difficult to meet their statutory responsibilities 

• experience low levels of attendance at SACRE meetings 

• have limited awareness of the quality of provision for RE and 
collective worship in schools 

• have limited subject specialist or financial support from the LA 

• little information about the impact or effectiveness of the 
locally agreed syllabus 

• have limited representation from religious diversity in the local 
community 

• have no development plan to focus the future work of the SACRE. 
 
The objectives for SACREs at this stage of development are to focus on 
ways of providing more proactive leadership, so as to move beyond the 
basic fulfilment of their statutory obligations. Key targets might 
include: 

• reviewing and extending the membership of the SACRE 

• making SACRE meetings more purposeful 

• identifying sources of specialist advice to support the SACRE’s 
work 

• producing an action plan to focus ways of developing the work of 
the SACRE 

• creating stronger links with RE teachers in local schools. 
 

Stage 2: established 
SACREs at this stage will have a well-established relationship with 
their LA and have a clear idea about their priorities for development. 
Good acquisition of resources enable it to carry out its functions 
effectively. Members will be reasonably well informed about the quality 
of provision in local schools and, as a result, are in a position to 
challenge and support the work of the LA. Meetings will be seen as 
purposeful and worthwhile occasions. 



The issues facing SACREs at this stage may be: 

• limited opportunities to take the initiative in promoting new 
ideas 

• gaining better information about the quality of provision in 
schools 

• the need to extend the links with wider LA priorities and 
activities 

• ways of extending their analysis of the impact and effectiveness 
of the locally agreed syllabus. 

 
At this stage, maintaining momentum may be important and key targets 
might include: 

• exploring ways of measuring the impact of their work more 
effectively 

• extending the ways in which the SACRE can contribute to the LA’s 
priorities 

• investigating opportunities to promote and initiate activities to 
improve quality and provision 

• exploring ways in which the SACRE can extend its contribution to 
the promotion of social and racial harmony. 

 

Stage 3: advanced 
SACREs at this stage will have very effective practice. Members will 
have a shared vision and understanding of their aims and purpose, and 
will seek to sustain their positive work in the light of changing needs 
and priorities. Meetings will be very purposeful and focused on the 
major priorities for improvement in schools. There will be a very 
effective partnership with the LA, and SACREs will be well supported by 
subject specialist advice, training and funding. They will be very well 
informed about the quality and provision for RE and collective worship 
in schools, and about wider LA and national priorities and developments. 
The process of reviewing, revising, implementing and evaluating the 
locally agreed syllabus will be very robust, ensuring that schools are 
well supported in their work. Objectives at this stage will be concerned 
with innovation and sharing good practice to sustain the momentum and 
success.  
 
Key targets might include: 

• extending the range of initiatives taken to improve standards and 
quality in schools 

• ensuring pupils’ progress can lead to recognition of achievement 
through, for example, GCSE accreditation  

• exploring ways of sharing good practice more widely with other 
SACREs and schools. 

• improving the ways in which evidence is gathered about standards 
and the quality of provision in schools, particularly in the light 
of changes in the nature of Ofsted inspections 

• developing the ways in which the SACRE can contribute to the 
promotion of social and racial harmony. 

 



The responsibilities of SACREs 
The legal responsibilities of the LA are to: 

• ensure that there is a SACRE 

• ensure all four committees_ are represented on the SACRE 

• ensure there is an agreed syllabus which is reviewed at least once 
every five years 

• ensure that support is in place for the SACRE to enable it to 
discharge its responsibilities 

• take note of, and respond to, any advice it receives from the 
SACRE. 

 
Reference to SACREs from the LA may include advice on methods of 
teaching, the choice of teaching material and the provision of teacher 
training.  
 
A SACRE must: 

• publish an annual report of its work and send this to QCA 

• consider requests for determinations on collective worship when 
required 

• advise the LA upon such matters as collective worship and the 
religious education to be given, in accordance with an agreed 
syllabus.  

 
A SACRE is also likely to:  

• monitor the provision for both RE and collective worship 

• provide support and advice on RE and collective worship to 
schools. 

 



Development Plan 
 
The words above come direct from that document, without adaptation, so 
as to comply with Crown Copyright requirements. 
 
The development plan that has existed thus far dates back to the one 

produced as part of OFSTED document HMI 2467, SACREs and self-
evaluation: A guide (May 1995). 
 
The Chair of SACRE asked that the development plan be reviewed and 
updated so that it can be put into proper use by Southampton SACRE.  
 
To that end a working group was established to review the plan, identify 
how well we are performing against it and, where necessary change the 
plan to make it more relevant for us today. 
 
The wording of the development plan below is exactly as it appears in 
the OFSTED guidance document, although the layout is rather different.   
 
 
The work of the SACRE has been split into five dimensions, as follows: 
 
Dimension 1: Standards and quality of provision of religious education 
(7 parts) 
Dimension 2: Management of the SACRE and partnership with the LA and 
other key stakeholders (6 parts) 
Dimension 3: The effectiveness of the locally agreed syllabus (5 parts) 
Dimension 4: Collective worship (2 parts) 

Dimension 5: Contribution of the SACRE to the social and racial harmony 
agenda (4 parts) 

 
For each part (a, b, c, etcetera) we need to establish whether 
Southampton SACRE falls into the category of Developing, Established, 
Advanced or Exemplar. 
 
You will see below a series of statements that are intended to aid that 
process.  The appropriate category for each part has been highlighted in 
red. 
 
Recommended steps to achieve improvement have been noted in blue.   
 
What we now need to do is approve the development plan, as detailed 
below.  What is particularly important is to agree what category applies 
to each part of the development plan.  This will govern what our next 
steps need to be.  If you disagree with any part of the development plan 
please raise it at the meeting on 14th June.  Please note that, at that 
meeting, the development plan will be viewed and approved, or not, as a 
whole, so we will not go through it point by point.  The only individual 
points to be looked at will be those raised by those attending the 
meeting, or those providing advance notification of a point to be 
raised.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dimension 1 
Standards and quality of provision of religious education 
 
How effectively does the SACRE, in partnership with the LA, monitor and 
evaluate standards and the quality of provision for RE in schools? 
How effective are the strategies to improve standards and the quality of 
provision? 
 
 
Key area: 1a Compliance and time allocation for RE  
 
 
Developing     
Little knowledge of levels of compliance with the legal requirements for 
RE in schools. Little information about the time schools are allocating 
to RE.  
 
Established 
Informed about levels of compliance and time allocations but limited 
opportunities to establish strategies for action where evidence of non-
compliance or inadequate time allocation is reported.   
 
Advanced  
Well informed about levels of compliance and time allocations and 
factors impacting on these. Clear understanding of effective ways 
schools can provide adequate time for RE. Established strategies to take 
action to support schools which are non-compliant and receive feedback 
on the impact of interventions.   
 
Exemplar of good practice 
Where a school self-evaluation shows it to be non-compliant or to 
provide inadequate curriculum time for RE, the SACRE requires the LA to 
investigate and report back on the action being taken by the school to 
address the situation.   
 
Action required to move to "Established" - create a Self Evaluation Form 
(SEF) for RE teachers to complete.  The SEF is currently in draft stage 
(thanks to excellent work by Sian Roberts).  Once a finished version of 
the SEF has been completed the Chair of SACRE will need to approach the 
Executive Director and the Cabinet member, to explain what we want to 
achieve and to identify how best to approach the matter.  We will need 
there support for any changes to be effective.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Red: current status of 
Southampton SACRE (where 
we are) 
Blue: actions required to 
progress to the next 
category 



Key area: 1b Public examination entries in RE 
 
  
Developing 
Limited knowledge of the number of pupils in the LA entered for GCSE, AS 
and A2 examinations.   
 
Established 
Informed about the number of pupils in the LA entered for GCSE, AS and 
A2 examinations and how this compares with national figures but few 
strategies to increase the number of entries.   
 
Advanced 
Well informed about the number of pupils in the LA entered for GCSE, AS 
and A2 examinations and how this compares with national figures. Clear 
strategies in place to increase the number of entries.   
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE receives a detailed analysis of examination entries in RE from 
the LA, including a breakdown by grouping (e.g. gender and ethnicity) 
and how this compares with national figures. The SACRE works 
collaboratively with the LA to promote examination courses as a means of 
fulfilling statutory requirements.    
 
Action required to move to "Advanced" - this would involve targeting the 
schools with low/nil entries in RE exams and finding out why this is and 
what can be done to change this.  We would need to initially work with 
Sue Langdon and then with the Executive Director and the Cabinet member.  
 
 
Key area : 1c Standards and achievement: including standards at the end 
of Key Stages 1, 2 and 3, GCSE, AS and A2 level 

 
  
Developing 
Limited knowledge about standards within schools and no clear SACRE or 
LA strategies to address areas of concern or share good practice. 
  
Established 
Informed about standards of RE in schools locally and by comparison with 
national figures, but limited analysis of the data and little 
opportunity to develop strategies to address weaknesses. 
  
Advanced 
Detailed information about standards with careful analysis of data 
against national figures and trends.  
Information about standards extends to primary schools and Key Stage 3. 
Clear strategies in place to tackle areas of weakness. 
Developing independent mechanisms to gather data about performance.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE receives detailed analysis of examination performance and 
requires the LA to explain how it will intervene in schools where there 
is clear evidence of under-performance. 
The SACRE requests schools to provide details of pupils’ levels of 
performance at the end of each key stage.   
 



Action required to move to "Established" - we will need to approach the 
local authority and NASACRE to acquire the necessary data.  If we were 
able to create a website/webpage we could store this data on it.   
 
 
Key area: 1d Quality of teaching 
 
 
Developing 
Limited knowledge about the quality of RE teaching in schools.  
 
Established 

Information provided about findings in relation to quality of teaching 
derived from LA intelligence and RE subject self-evaluations, but 
limited analysis of strengths and weaknesses and little opportunity to 
develop strategies to tackle weaknesses.   
 
Advanced 
Clear and detailed information about the quality of teaching, with some 
analysis of trends and strengths and weaknesses. Good strategies to 
share good practice and target improvement strategies on areas of 
weakness.  
The SACRE receives regular presentations from teachers about good 
practice in teaching and learning in RE. 
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE works with the LA to provide guidance to schools about 
effective RE teaching in primary and secondary schools, including 
guidance on effective and rigorous subject self-evaluation.   
 
Action required to move to "Established" - Develop a SEF. 
 
 
Key area: 1e Quality of leadership and management 
 
 
Developing 
Limited knowledge about the quality of leadership and management of RE 
in schools.  
 
Established 
Information provided about findings in relation to quality of leadership 
and management derived from LA intelligence and RE subject self-
evaluations, but limited analysis of strengths and weaknesses and little 
opportunity to develop strategies to tackle weaknesses. 
 
Advanced  
Clear and detailed information about the quality of leadership and 
management, with some analysis of trends and strengths and weaknesses. 
Good strategies to share good practice and target improvement strategies 
on areas of weakness.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE works with the LA to provide guidance to schools about 
effective leadership and management of RE in primary and secondary 
schools, including guidance on effective and rigorous subject self-
evaluation.   



Action required to move to "Established" - Develop a SEF. 
 
 
Key area: 1f Recruitment and retention issues. Level of specialist 
provision  

 
 
Developing 
Little knowledge of data and issues related to the recruitment or 
retention of specialist RE teachers in schools.  
 
Established 
Some investigation and analysis of subject recruitment and retention 
issues. The SACRE is aware of the level of non-specialist teaching of RE 
but has limited opportunity to take action to deal with its concerns.  
 
Advanced 
Detailed knowledge of patterns of recruitment, retention and specialist 
provision. The SACRE is active in promoting strategies to improve 
recruitment and provide training to address the needs of non-specialist 
teachers of RE.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE recommends to the LA that a comprehensive analysis is 
undertaken of the provision of specialist staffing for RE across the LA. 
Together they build links with local teacher training providers to 
explore ways of improving recruitment of specialist staff.   
 
Action required to move to "Established" - we will need to approach the 
local authority and NASACRE to acquire the necessary data.  If we were 
able to create a website/webpage we could store this data on it. 
 
 
Key area: 1g Resources 

 
 
Developing 

Little knowledge about issues related to the quality of resources for RE 
in schools  
 
Established 

Some information about issues related to resources for RE in schools but 
limited opportunity to address areas of concern.   
 
Advanced 

Detailed knowledge of issues related to resources for RE in schools. The 
SACRE is active in promoting the development of resources and setting 
benchmarks about appropriate levels of funding for the subject in 
schools.  
 
Exemplar 

The SACRE works in partnership with the LA to develop a subject website 
which incorporates guidance about current high quality resource 
materials. 
 
Action required to move to "Established" - Develop a SEF and look too 
develop a website. 



Dimension 2 
 
Management of the SACRE and partnership with the LA and other key 
stakeholders 
 
How far does the SACRE’s partnership with the LA enable it to carry out 
its responsibilities effectively? 
 
Key area: 2a SACRE meetings  
 
Developing 
Meetings are held regularly. Routine administrative arrangements are in 
place. Agendas and papers are distributed appropriately. 
Attendance is satisfactory. 
Business is dealt with in a prompt and orderly way. There are limited 
opportunities for teachers and representatives of faith communities to 
be invited to share their work.  
Business tends to be focused solely on routine statutory requirements.   
 
Established 
Attendance is good and all four committees are well represented. 
Agendas and papers are distributed well in advance ensuring all members 
have time to consider them carefully.  
Meetings are well managed with strong contributions from a wide range of 
members. 
Meetings move beyond routine matters to consider wider issues about the 
quality of RE and collective worship.  
 
Advanced 
SACRE members contribute to development of the agenda. Meetings are 
lively and purposeful with wide variety of contributions. Teachers and 
representatives of faith communities regularly attend and participate 
fully in meetings, sharing their experience and insights. Meetings are 
held in a variety of venues, including local places of worship and 
schools.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE frequently holds meetings in local places of worship providing 
opportunities for members to develop their understanding of the 
religious communities in the local area.   
 
Action required to move to "Established" - agendas and papers are 
generally distributed in good time for each SACRE meeting and the 
meetings themselves are structured and fairly well managed.  This must 
continue.  The meetings need to allot more time to consider wider issues 
about the quality of RE and collective worship.   
 
 
Key area: 2b Membership and training  
 
 
Developing 
The membership fulfils the basic statutory obligations. The arrangements 
to fill vacancies are not always effective. There are limited induction 
and training opportunities for SACRE members.  
 
  



Established 
The membership strongly reflects the diversity of the wider religious 
and professional community. There are some opportunities for SACRE 
members to participate in training activities.  
 
Advanced 

Very good use is made of co-option to ensure membership of the SACRE is 
well informed and is highly representative of the diversity of the local 
community. There is a strong and co-ordinated programme of induction, 
and training opportunities for SACRE members.  
 
Exemplar 

The SACRE has a well-developed process of co-option of local teachers of 
RE to ensure it has a broad representation from all types of school in 
the LA.   
 
Action required to move to "Established" - we need to establish clear 
training opportunities for SACRE members. 
 
 
Key area: 2c Improvement/development planning  
 
 
Developing 
The SACRE does not have an action plan to focus its future work and 
there is little overt linkage between the priorities of the LA’s 
development / improvement plan and the work of the SACRE.  
 
Established 

The SACRE has a basic action plan which is reviewed regularly and 
updated on an annual basis. This provides an effective focus for the 
SACRE’s work. There is some attempt to link the plan to the wider LA 
priorities.  
 
Advanced 

The SACRE has a well-defined action plan with clear objectives and 
success criteria. Resource implications are clearly defined. There is a 
clear link between the plan and the wider objectives of the LA. The 
SACRE is regularly represented at national events relevant to its work; 
for example, NASACRE.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE is provided with a summary of the current LA priorities and 
identifies ways its action plan can incorporate relevant objectives 
related to these priorities   
 
Action required to move to "Established" - sign off a development plan 
which would need to be regularly reviewed (as an agenda item at the 
quarterly SACRE meetings). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Key area: 2d Professional and financial support  
 
 
Developing 
Representatives of the LA attend meetings but there is limited subject 
specialist advice available. There are resources for basic SACRE 
functions but there is no specific budget for the SACRE and little 
opportunity for the SACRE to take initiatives requiring funding.  
 
Established 
The SACRE has some access to subject specialist advice. The LA is 
represented at meetings and can provide a means of communication with 
the wider LA. The SACRE has a modest budget which enables it to fund 
some initiatives.   
 
Advanced 
The SACRE is well supported by a subject specialist who provides 
effective advice and is well informed about the provision and quality of 
RE in the LA and about national developments. The SACRE is also attended 
by a lead officer from the LA who can provide a strong link between the 
work of the SACRE and the wider LA.  
The SACRE has access to funds to enable it to make decisions about its 
priorities and ensure these can be properly resourced.  
 

Exemplar 
The SACRE in an LA with no subject specialist adviser co-opts a local 
advanced skills teacher (AST) with expertise in RE and secures release 
time for her to undertake development work for the SACRE and schools. 
 
In another case a SACRE develops a partnership with a neighbouring LA’s 
specialist adviser to provide advice and support   
 
Action required to move to "Advanced" - we need to clarify what the 
budget is for SACRE and whether it is safe for the coming year.  There 
has recently been a new subject specialist (AST) appointed in 
Southampton.  We must take advantage of this.  We also need to clarify 
the scope of the role of the lead officer from the LEA going forward.   
 
 
Key area: 2e Information and advice 
 
 
Developing 

The SACRE receives limited information about public examination data 
from the LA. Limited information is provided about wider national and 
local developments. The SACRE tends to receive information from the LA 
rather than ask questions of the LA and challenge its work.  
 
Established 

The SACRE is regularly provided with clear information relevant to the 
quality and provision for RE and collective worship in local schools. 
The SACRE receives the information in a way that enables it to challenge 
and question the LA’s work.  
 
 
 
 



Advanced 

The SACRE receives detailed and well-analysed information about the 
quality and provision for RE and collective worship. As a result SACRE 
uses this information effectively to give advice to the LA which leads 
to strategic action to improve standards and quality in schools. The 
SACRE has a strong partnership with the LA and plays an active role in 
promoting ideas and initiatives.  
 
Exemplar 

The SACRE, as a result of receiving detailed evidence about pupil 
performance, identifies significant underachievement by boys. It advises 
the LA to undertake an exercise to identify good practice and provide 
guidance to schools that is effective in raising boys’ achievement.    
 
Action required to move to "Established" - SACRE needs to be much more 
proactive and probing of the LA.  
 
 
Key area: 2f Partnerships with other key stakeholders (for example 
pupils, parent, ASTs, specialist schools, ITT providers, local religious 
organisations and groups, Commission for Racial Equality)  

 
 
Developing 
The SACRE has little contact with or awareness of other local agencies, 
and rarely has contact with pupils or parents.  
 
Established 
The SACRE is well informed about other key stakeholders supporting RE 
and has some contact with the groups involved.   
 
Advanced 
The SACRE has opportunities to hear the views and experience of pupils 
and parents about RE. Representatives of key support networks such as 
ASTs and higher education providers are regularly involved with the 
SACRE. The SACRE’s activities build effectively on local networks.  
 
Exemplar 

The SACRE invites RE trainees on the PGCE course at the local university 
to attend one meeting a year to provide an opportunity for the trainees 
to develop their understanding of the role of the SACRE and provide a 
forum to discuss issues of mutual interest.   
 
Action required to move to "Established" - this should be easy to 
achieve.  Southampton SACRE is actually fairly well informed of some of 
the other key stakeholders, some of whom regularly attend the quarterly 
SACRE meeting and contribute.  We need to work on the communication with 
pupils/parents more. 
 
 

Dimension 3 
The effectiveness of the locally agreed syllabus. 

 
How effectively does the SACRE, in partnership with the LA, monitor the 
impact of the agreed syllabus in raising standards, use national 
guidance (e.g. the non-statutory national framework) and evaluate the 
effectiveness of the previous agreed syllabus? 



Key area: 3a Review of the agreed syllabus  
 
 
Developing 
Little opportunity to review the effectiveness of the previous agreed 
syllabus. Teachers’ views are not known and there has been no external 
evaluation of strengths/weaknesses of the existing version. There is 
little budget for agreed syllabus development and no clear action plan 
to structure the review process.   
 
Established 
The SACRE has a good idea of the strengths/weaknesses of the previous 
agreed syllabus. Teachers’ views and some external evaluation are 
carefully taken into consideration and there is a clear action plan and 
sufficient budget for the agreed syllabus review.   
 
Advanced 
The SACRE has a clear and systematic process for reviewing the agreed 
syllabus including full consultation with schools and other key 
stakeholders, particularly faith communities. The budget is clearly 
allocated including consultation meetings, external evaluation and 
printing/distribution costs. There is strong sense of ownership of the 
agreed syllabus review, with clear targets for what needs to be 
achieved.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE reviews all available evaluation data about the effectiveness 
of the existing agreed syllabus. It consults local teachers through 
meetings and a questionnaire to evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of 
the agreed syllabus. It invites participation of an external consultant 
to provide a more objective view of the quality of the existing 
syllabus.   
 
Action required to move to - the agreed syllabus appears to be reviewed 
purely as part of the statutory requirement to conduct a review once 
every five years.  It is hard to comment fully on this area as the 
agreed syllabus is currently undergoing review and we shall be in a 
better position to identify where we are and what our next step(s) 
should be once that process has been concluded. 
 
 
Key area: 3b Using the National Framework for Religious Education  
 
 
Developing 
The SACRE has a limited view of the role and significance of the 
National Framework in relation to the agreed syllabus review process and 
does not use the Framework in a coherent way.  
 
Established 
The SACRE is aware of the National Framework and uses it in their agreed 
syllabus review but does not extend the Framework to reflect local 
circumstances.   
 
 
 
 



Advanced 
The SACRE fully uses the National Framework in the construction of the 
revised agreed syllabus, understanding fully the importance of retaining 
the coherence and integrity of the Framework. It uses and extends the 
Framework in a coherent way to reflect local circumstances.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE undertakes a careful cost-benefit analysis of the value of 
using the National Framework for Religious Education as a basis for its 
revision of the existing agreed syllabus. As a result, it establishes a 
clear view of the way its revision of the agreed syllabus will build on 
the National Framework.   
 
Action required to move to - It is hard to comment fully on this area as 
the agreed syllabus is currently undergoing review and we shall be in a 
better position to identify where we are and what our next step(s) 
should be once that process has been concluded. 
 
 
Key area: 3c Developing the revised agreed syllabus. 
  
 
Developing 
The SACRE has no clear structure for developing a revised agreed 
syllabus. It does not undertake a thorough revision, tending to add 
material rather haphazardly to the existing syllabus, leading to lack of 
coherence in the final outcome. There is little or no consultation 
during the development of a new agreed syllabus.  
 
Established 
The SACRE has clear objectives for the revision and involves a wide 
range of local expertise in its construction. The SACRE ensures that 
strong direction is provided to design an agreed syllabus which is 
coherent, clear and accessible. The SACRE, in partnership with the LA, 
holds consultation meetings which are reasonably supported.   
 
Advanced 
The SACRE ensures that high quality advice is sought to review and 
advise on the revisions as they develop. 
The SACRE, in partnership with the LA, holds very well attended 
consultation meetings and briefings to ensure teachers are fully 
involved in, and have a sense of ownership of, the revision process.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE produces a regular newsletter circulated to all schools 
outlining the progress with the revision of the agreed syllabus.   
 
Action required - It is hard to comment fully on this area as the agreed 
syllabus is currently undergoing review and we shall be in a better 
position to identify where we are and what our next step(s) should be 
once that process has been concluded.  The Southampton SACRE has been 
represented at all the writing groups. 
 
 
 
 
 



Key area: 3d Consultation / launch / implementation of the agreed 
syllabus  
 
Developing 
No special launch is planned and schools are not aware of the 
significance of the revisions for their teaching and learning in RE. 
There is little training provision for implementing the revised 
syllabus.   
 
Established 
A launch event is organised and other forms of communication (for 
example the LA website) are used to promote the launch. There are clear 
arrangements for training teachers on implementing the syllabus; this 
training is well supported and managed.  
 
Advanced 
A successful launch, involving the wider community and strong media 
coverage, gives the agreed syllabus a high profile as an important 
development in the work of the LA and SACRE. Effective training on 
implementing the agreed syllabus, which is supported by all schools, 
leads to teachers being clear about standards and expectations in the 
agreed syllabus and the implications for teaching and learning.  
  
Exemplar 
The SACRE provides clear guidance about ways in which schools might 
begin the process of reviewing their own provision for RE in the light 
of the revised syllabus. 
 
The launch event includes high quality presentations from a range of 
local religious communities and schools.   
 
Action required - It is hard to comment fully on this area as the agreed 
syllabus is currently undergoing review and we shall be in a better 
position to identify where we are and what our next step(s) should be 
once that process has been concluded.  A launch should be planned and 
the appropriate steps taken to ensure schools are provided with the new 
syllabus swiftly, along with any necessary training/guidance notes. 
 
 
Key area: 3e Additional guidance / monitoring and evaluating the agreed 
syllabus   
 
 
Developing 
A shortage of financial and human resources prevent the SACRE from 
providing any significant additional guidance on using the agreed 
syllabus. It has limited arrangements in place to monitor the impact of 
the agreed syllabus, particularly in raising standards.  
 
Established 
The SACRE, through its costed development plan, has arrangements in 
place to develop additional guidance. The SACRE is able to monitor the 
impact of the agreed syllabus, particularly in raising standards.  
 
 
 
 



Advanced 
The SACRE has fully costed precise plans for further guidance and 
support and has consulted extensively with schools on what these should 
be. Teachers are actively involved in the development of support 
materials ensuring the process provides a strong professional 
development opportunity. There are clear arrangements in place to 
monitor the impact of the new agreed syllabus and to measure its 
effectiveness in raising standards.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE builds a process of monitoring the effectiveness of the agreed 
syllabus into its development plan. It identifies a series of specific 
and phased activities which will be undertaken to provide evidence of 
the impact of the syllabus leading through to the next five-year 
revision.   
 
Action required to move to - It is hard to comment fully on this area as 
the agreed syllabus is currently undergoing review and we shall be in a 
better position to identify where we are and what our next step(s) 
should be once that process has been concluded. 

 
Dimension 4 
Collective worship. 

 
How effectively does the SACRE fulfil its responsibilities for the 
provision and practice of collective worship? 
 
 
Key area: 4a Practice and provision for collective worship  
 
 
Developing 
The SACRE has not provided guidance to schools on collective worship and 
arrangements for determinations are not in place. Issues regarding 
collective worship have not featured as part of the SACRE’s agenda and 
national developments are not known. There is no training provision for 
collective worship.  
 
Established 
The SACRE has not provided guidance to schools on collective worship 
which focuses on good practice. Meetings of the SACRE regularly focus on 
provision and practice in collective worship, and schools consider they 
are well supported by their SACRE on matters related to collective 
worship. The SACRE is aware of national developments in collective 
worship. Training is provided for schools and is reasonably supported.    
 
Advanced 
The SACRE provides high quality advice and support on collective 
worship, sharing best practice, which leads to improvements in the 
quality of children’s learning experiences. The SACRE regularly focuses 
on collective worship in its meetings and updates schools on new 
resources. The SACRE is actively involved in national developments in 
collective worship. High quality, well-supported training enhances 
provision.  
 
 



Exemplar 
Through its website the SACRE regularly provides exemplar acts of 
worship for schools to use. These are frequently updated. Members of 
SACRE visit schools to observe and/or lead collective worship and share 
their findings. Feedback from schools indicates high-level usage of the 
exemplar acts of worship. 
 
Action required to move to "Established" - we need to produce a document 
on collective worship that is current and accurate.  There have been 
attempts in the past, but no practical finished article has been 
produced.  We need to take steps to make ourselves aware of up-to-date 
NASACRE collective worship policy and to create a training programme to 
ensure that collective worship is properly carried out in schools.  This 
could take the "SEAL" approach to see if schools are aware of the 
existence of SACRE and could form part of the SEF discussed above.   
As well as contacting NASACRE we should look into establishing a website 
or webpage.    
 
 
Key area: 4b Monitoring the provision of collective worship and tackling 
issues of non-compliance  

 
 
Developing 
The SACRE does not monitor provision of collective worship. Members are 
unaware of the issues facing schools and do not provide advice on how 
issues of non-compliance can be addressed.   
 
Established 
The SACRE monitors provision of collective worship and is aware of non-
compliance issues and the demands collective worship places on schools. 
As a result of monitoring, further advice is provided to schools but 
members of the SACRE have limited ‘hands-on’ experience of collective 
worship in schools.  
 
Advanced 
The SACRE closely monitors provision for collective worship, and 
provides guidance and support for schools, particularly on non-
compliance. Members of the SACRE have direct experience of collective 
worship in schools through first-hand observation. They discuss key 
issues with staff and pupils and provide further advice in the light of 
their findings.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE, in partnership with the LA and the local secondary heads 
association, arranges for all its members to visit local secondary 
schools to observe acts of worship and discuss issues with staff and 
pupils. Following the visits a report is published, highlighting best 
practice and ways in which non-compliance might be tackled.   



Action required to move to "Established" - we need to devise a practical 
programme of monitoring of collective worship in schools.  This would 
require co-operation of/with both teachers within schools and faith 
group representatives.  The latter, as well as monitoring collective 
worship in schools, may wish to, from time to time, lead the worship.  
Members of SACRE should actually be aware of the issues facing schools, 
but cannot advise on how to address them until the points above have 
been dealt with. 
 
 

Dimension 5 
Contribution of the SACRE to the social and racial harmony agenda 
 
How effectively does the SACRE, in partnership with the LA, contribute 
to the wider social and racial harmony agenda?  
 
 
Key area: 5a Representative nature of the SACRE   
 
 
Developing 
Membership of the SACRE meets statutory requirements but is not 
necessarily strongly representative of the religious diversity of the 
local community.  
 
Established 
The SACRE and the LA ensure representation broadly reflects the 
religious diversity of the local community.  
 
Advanced 
The SACRE has strong representation from all major local religious 
communities, including different groups within the same religious 
tradition (for example, different Muslim communities).   
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE in an LA with few non-Christian communities is pro-active in 
seeking out members who are representative of a wide diversity of other 
religious traditions.   
 
 
Action required to move to "Exemplar" - Not considered for now as focus 
should be on improving other areas of this dimension. 
 
 
Key area: 5b Knowledge and understanding of the local religious, 
cultural and ethnic community  
 
 
Developing 
The SACRE has limited knowledge about the religious, cultural and ethnic 
diversity in the local area.  
 
Established 
The SACRE is well aware of different groups representing the diversity 
within the local area.  
 
 



Advanced 
The SACRE is very aware of the nature of the religious, ethnic and 
cultural diversity in the local area and takes active steps to inform 
itself about the distinctive needs and opportunities created by this 
diversity.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE is provided with a detailed analysis of the religious and 
cultural diversity within the LA and issues related to the relative 
educational performance of pupils from different ethnic groups.   
 
Action required to fully move into "Advanced" category - more 
involvement with the other religious, ethnic and cultural groups in the 
city.  SACRE needs to be more proactive. 
 
 
Key area: 5c Understanding the intrinsic contribution which RE can make 
to social and racial harmony  
 
 
Developing 
The SACRE has a basic grasp of the contribution which RE can make to the 
social and racial harmony agenda but has limited opportunity to promote 
this further.  
 
Established 
The SACRE has a clear commitment to the part RE can play in promoting 
the social and racial harmony agenda and seeks to promote this 
throughout its work.  
 
Advanced 
The SACRE plays a key role in promoting activities to extend the 
contribution of RE to the development of social and racial harmony. It 
ensures that this is embedded explicitly in the agreed syllabus and 
related guidance.  
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE produces guidance for schools to support the contribution RE 
can make to social and racial harmony and the wider inclusion agenda.   
 
Action required to move to "Established" - need to open up 
communications with schools.  It's worth noting that there is a 
Southampton Council of Faiths (SCOF) project in the pipeline that 
includes recruitment of a link-person between SCOF and the teaching of 
RE in schools. 
 
 
Key area: 5d Links to local authority initiatives promoting social and 
racial harmony   
 
 
Developing 
The SACRE has limited information about, or contact with, wider local 
authority initiatives linked to the promotion of social and racial 
harmony. 
 
  



Established 
The SACRE is aware of the wider local authority initiatives promoting 
social and racial harmony and has the opportunity to discuss and 
contribute to this work.  
 
Advanced 
The SACRE plays a key role in the work of the local authority in this 
area and takes the initiative in promoting activities and links which 
relate to this work.   
 
Exemplar 
The SACRE in a predominantly mono-cultural area takes the initiative in 
the local authority in developing links with a small Muslim community 
recently established in the area.  
 
Action required to move to "Established" - Councillors need to work on 
raising awareness.  Getting Vanessa Shahani to speak to a future SACRE 
meeting is something already a possibility. 



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

























Appendix 2









































Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the Last Meeting including Matters Arising
	6 Adoption of the Constitution
	Appendix

	9 Development Plan
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


